

OFFICE OF KIM TRUEBLOOD COUNTY CLERK MARATHON COUNTY



Marathon County Mission Statement: Marathon County Government serves people by leading, coordinating, and providing county, regional, and statewide initiatives. It directly or in cooperation with other public and private partners provides services and creates opportunities that make Marathon County and the surrounding area a preferred place to live, work, visit, and do business.

ADJOURNED ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING – AGENDA WITH MINUTES

THE ADJOURNED ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING of the Marathon County Board of Supervisors, composed of thirty-eight (38) members, will convene at the Marathon County Courthouse, Assembly Room, 500 Forest Street, Wausau, on Tuesday, May 24, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. to consider the following matters:

A. OPENING OF SESSION:

- 1. Meeting called to order by County Board Chair at 7:00 p.m., the agenda being duly signed and posted
- 2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag; Followed by a Moment of Silence/Reflection
- 3. Reading of Notice
- 4. Request for silencing cell phones and other electronic devices
- 5. Roll Call All members were present with the exception of those marked otherwise:

Aarrestad	17 Excused	Maszk	26
Baker	23 Excused	McEwen	18
Bootz	12 Excused	Morache	6
Buch	7	Niemeyer	38
Covelli	33	Oberbeck	9
Dickinson	29	Opall	37
Drabek	31	Ritter	13
Gibbs	32	Robinson	4
Gisselman	5 Excused	Rosenberg	21
Gonnering	28	Seefeldt	14 Excused
Vacant	24	Seubert	27
Hart	3	Sherfinski	16
Hartinger	22	Sondelski	25
Krause	10 Absent	Straub	15
Lamont	36	Ungerer	8
Langenhahn	35	Van Krey	1
Leahy	11	Venzke	30
Lemmer	2	Wilhelm	34
Marshall	20	Xiong	19

6. Acknowledgment of visitors

B. MEMORIAL

7. Mao Khang

<u>Discussion</u>: None.

Action: Motion by Xiong, Second by Robinson to approve the memorial. Motion passed on a voice vote, unanimously. The board observed a moment of silence in honor of Ms.

Follow Through: Copies sent to Ms. Khang's sister and the Women's Community.

C. APPOINTMENTS:

8. Park Commission – Lou Larson and Carol Lukens

Discussion: None

<u>Action</u>: Motion by Maszk, Second by Robinson to approve the appointment. Motion carried on a voice vote, unanimously.

Follow Through: None

9. Public Library Board – Andrea Sheridan

Discussion: None

<u>Action</u>: Motion by Van Krey, Second by Buch to approve the appointment. Motion carried on a voice vote, unanimously.

Follow Through: None.

D. CONSENT AGENDA:

- 10. Approval of minutes from the April 19 & 26, 2022 meetings
- 11. Referral of bills and communications to respective committees
- 12. Authorizing the Clerk to issue orders, bills, and claims form the last session through this session.
- 13. Resolutions:
 - a) Environmental Resources Committee:
 - 1. Town of Ringle Comprehensive Revision and Adoption of a Town Zoning Ordinance and Zoning District Map #R-36-22
- 14. Ordinances:
 - a) Environmental Resources Committee:
 - 1. Town of Reid Rezone Gail Buchkowski #O-13-22

Discussion: None.

<u>Action</u>: Motion by Langenhahn, Second by Drabek to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion carried on a voice vote, unanimously.

Follow Through: None.

RESOLUTIONS

E. HUMAN RESOURCES, FINANCE, AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE:

15. Approve 2022 Budget Transfers for Marathon County Department Appropriations #R-37-22

<u>Discussion</u>: Questions were asked and answered.

<u>Action</u>: Motion by Robinson, Second by Venzke to adopt the resolution. Motion carried on a voice vote, unanimously.

Follow Through: None.

16. Resolution Awarding the Sale of \$24,165,000 General Obligation Capital Improvement

Bonds, Series 2022A #R-38-22

Discussion: Questions were asked and answered.

<u>Action</u>: Motion by Robinson, Second by McEwen to adopt the resolution. Motion carried on a voice vote, unanimously.

Follow Through: None.

17. Resolution Awarding the Sale of \$19,225,000 General Obligation Health Care Project

Building Bonds, Series 2022B #R-39-22

<u>Discussion</u>: Questions were asked and answered.

<u>Action</u>: Motion by Robinson, Second by Opall to adopt the resolution. Motion carried on a voice vote, but was not unanimous.

Follow Through: None.

F. INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE:

18. Town of Emmet Request for Financial Aid for Access to Big Eau Pleine Park Road #R-40-22

Discussion: Questions were asked and answered.

<u>Action</u>: Motion by Langenhahn, Second by Dickinson to adopt the resolution. Motion carried on a voice vote, unamimously.

Follow Through: None.

19. Resolution to Vacate Portion of Highway Right-of-Way #R-41-22

Discussion: Questions were asked and answered.

<u>Action</u>: Motion by Covelli, Second by Seubert to adopt the resolution. Motion carried on a voice vote, unanimously.

Follow Through: None.

G. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS:

- 20. Announcements and/or requests
 - Supervisor Xiong introduced some Hmong youth who attended the meeting with him to observe local government.
 - Clerk requested needed signatures.
- 21. Move to adjourn Motion by Opall, Second by Gonnering to adjourn. Motion carried on a voice vote, unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m.

Minutes submitted by Kim Trueblood, Marathon County Clerk

The full text of all Ordinances and Resolutions can be found at the end of this document.

APPOINTMENTS

<u>Park Commission</u> - appointing Wausau City Alderperson Lou Larson (replacing Jim Wadinski) and Wausau City Alderperson Carol Lukens (replacing Pat Peckham) to the Park Commission to complete a seven year term to expire June 30, 2029, or until such time as they are no longer on the City Council, whichever occurs first.

Dated this 24th day of May, 2022.

<u>Public Library Board</u> - appointing the following individual to the Marathon County Public Library Board to complete a three-year term to expire December 31, 2024 (replacing Scott Winch): Andrea Sheridan, 1808 Tall Oaks Drive, Wausau, WI 54403.

Per diem and mileage/expense reimbursement will be paid for meeting attendance, to be paid from library budgeted funds.

Dated this 24th day of May, 2022

#R-36-22 – Town of Ringle – Comprehensive Revision and Adoption of a Town Zoning Ordinance and Zoning District Map

WHEREAS, the Town of Ringle adopted a zoning ordinance (known as the Town of Ringle Zoning Ordinance) pursuant to the authority granted to towns under §60.62, Wis. Stats.; and

WHEREAS, to §60.62(3) Wis. Stats provides that any Zoning Ordinance and map adopted by a Town Board and any amendment thereof shall be subject to the approval of the County Board in counties having a county zoning ordinance, and

WHEREAS, Marathon County adopted a zoning ordinance pursuant to the authority granted to counties under §59.69, Wis. Stats.; and

WHEREAS, the Town Board of Supervisors of the Town of Ringle ("Town Board") has petitioned to repeal and re-adopt the Town of Ringle Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance") and Town of Ringle Zoning Map ("Zoning Map") adopted on January 10, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Marathon County Environmental Resources Committee, having considered the request to review the Town Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map filed by the Clerk of the Town of Ringle, and duly advised action by the Town, hereby recommends that the County Board approves this petition as attached and is available at the following link: https://townofringlewi.com/ordinances-resolutions/ and in incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Marathon County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the petition to repeal and re-adopt the Town of Ringle Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance") and Town of Ringle Zoning Map ("Zoning Map") as attached and made part of this record, all of which to be filed with the Marathon County Clerk.

Dated this 3rd day of May, 2022

Environmental Resources Committee

#R-37-22 - Approve 2022 Budget Transfers for Marathon County Department Appropriations WHEREAS, Section 65.90(5)(a) dictates that appropriations in the Marathon County budget may not be modified unless authorized by a vote of two-thirds of the entire membership of the County Board of Supervisors, and

WHEREAS, the Human Resources, Finance and Property Committee has reviewed and does recommend the 2022 transfers listed below, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Marathon County Board of Supervisors authorize and direct the budget transfers as listed below:

Transfer from:	Highway 801 289 87134 STH 153 Construction Revenue
Transfer to:	Highway 801 289 91210/4590/5330 STH 153 Construction Expense
Amount:	\$9,500
Re:	Funding for the construction of STH 153

Transfer from:	EM Gov 169 854 87400/9900
----------------	---------------------------

Transfer to:	EM Gov 169 854 88400/854 91210 wages and misc revenue
Amount:	\$17,634
Re:	Emergency Government reporting for City of Wausau EM agreement

That a Class 1 Notice of this transaction be published within (10) days of its adoption; BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes and directs the Marathon County Clerk to issue checks pursuant to this resolution and the Marathon County Treasurer to honor said checks.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proper officers of Marathon County are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to affect this policy.

Respectfully submitted this 24th day of May 2022

Human Resources, Finance, and Property Committee

#R-38-22 – Resolution Awarding the Sale of \$24,165,000 General Obligation Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2022A

WHEREAS, on March 22,2022, the County Board of Supervisors of Marathon County, Wisconsin (the "County") adopted an initial resolution, by a vote of at least three-fourths ofthe members-elect, authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds or promissory notes in an amount not to exceed \$24,165,000 for the public purpose of financing 2022 Capital Improvement Plan projects, including acquisition of equipment, improvements to County buildings, park and recreation projects and other capital projects (collectively, the "Project");

WHEREAS, the County Board of Supervisors hereby finds and determines that the Project is within the County's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes;

WHEREAS, the County is authorized by the provisions of Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, to borrow money and issue general obligation bonds for such public purposes; WHEREAS, the County has directed PFM Financial Advisors LLC ("PFM") to take the steps necessary to sell general obligation bonds (the "Bonds") to pay the cost of the Project; WHEREAS, none of the proceeds of the Bonds shall be used to fund the operating expenses of the general fund of the County or to fund the operating expenses of any special revenue fund of the County that is supported by the property taxes;

WHEREAS, PFM, in consultation with the officials of the County, prepared an Official Notice of Sale (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference) setting forth the details of and the bid requirements for the Bonds and indicating that the Bonds would be offered for public sale on May 24, 2022;

WHEREAS, the County Clerk (in consultation with PFM) caused a form of notice of the sale to be published and/or announced and caused the Official Notice of Sale to be distributed to potential bidders offering the Bonds for public sale on May 24, 2022;

WHEREAS, the County has duly received bids for the Bonds as described on the Bid Tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Bid Tabulation"); and WHEREAS, it has been determined that the bid proposal (the "Proposal") submitted by the financial institution listed first on the Bid Tabulation fully complies with the bid requirements set forth in the Official Notice of Sale and is deemed to be the most advantageous to the County. PFM has recommended that the County accept the Proposal. A copy of said Proposal submitted by such institution (the "Purchaser") is attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of Supervisors of the County that:

Section 1. Ratification of the Official Notice of Sale and Offeling Materials. The County Board of Supervisors hereby ratifies and approves the details of the Bonds set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto as and for the details of the Bonds. The Official Notice of Sale and any other offering materials prepared and circulated by PFM are hereby ratified and approved in all respects. All of the Official Notice of Sale, and any other offering materials are hereby ratified and approved in all respects.

Section 1A. Award of the Bonds. For the purpose of paying the cost of the Project, there shall be borrowed pursuant to Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, the principal sum of TWENTY-THREE MILLION NINE HUNDRED FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$23,915,000) from the Purchaser in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Proposal. The Proposal of the Purchaser offering to purchase the Bonds for the sum set forth on the Proposal (as modified on the Bid Tabulation and reflected in the Pricing Summary referenced below and incorporated herein), plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, is hereby accepted. The Chairperson and County Clerk or other appropriate officers of the County are authorized and directed to execute an acceptance of the Proposal on behalf of the County. The good faith deposit of the Purchaser shall be applied in accordance with the Official Notice of Sale, and any good faith deposits submitted by unsuccessful bidders shall be promptly returned. The Bonds shall bear interest at the rates set forth on the Proposal.

Section 2. Terms of the <u>Bo</u>nds. The Bonds shall be designated "General Obligation Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2022A"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of \$23,915,000; shall be dated June 15, 2022; shall be in the denomination of\$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and shall bear interest at the rates per annum and mature on February 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as set forth on the Pricing Summary attached hereto as Exhibit D-1 and incorporated herein by this reference. Interest shall be payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year commencing on February 1, 2023. Interest shall be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year oftwelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The schedule of principal and interest payments due on the Bonds is set forth on the Debt Service Schedule attached hereto as <u>Exhibit D-2</u> and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Schedule").

Section 3. Redemption Provisions. The Bonds maturing on February 1, 2033 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the County, on February 1, 2032 or on any date thereafter. Said Bonds are redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the County, and within each maturity by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

Section 4. Form of the Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued in registered form and shall be executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as <u>Exhibit E</u> and incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 5. Tax Provisions.

- (A) Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Leyy. For the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and resources of the County are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of the taxable property of the County a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2022 through 2041 for the payments due in the years 2023 through 2042 in the amounts set forth on the Schedule.
- (B) Tax Collection. So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the Bonds remains unpaid, the County shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for. After the issuance of the Bonds, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the County and collected in addition to all

other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as other taxes of the County for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried onto the tax roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund Account created below.

(C) Additional Funds. If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Bonds when due, the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the County then available, which sums shall be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied.

Section 6. Segregated Debt Service Fund Account.

(A) Creatinn and Deposits. There be and there hereby is established in the treasury of the County, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and distinct from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously

issued by the County may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service fund.

Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for General Obligation Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2022A" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and such account shall be maintained until the indebtedness evidenced by the Bonds is fully paid or otherwise extinguished. There shall be deposited into the Debt Service Fund Account (i) all accrued interest received by the County at the time of delivery of and payment for the Bonds; (ii) any premium which may be received by the County above the par value of the Bonds and accrued interest thereon; (iii) all money raised by the taxes herein levied and any amounts appropriated for the specific purpose of meeting principal of and interest on the Bonds when due; (iv) such other sums as may be necessary at any time to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds when due; (v) surplus monies in the Borrowed Money Fund as specified below; and (vi) such further deposits as may be required by Section 67.11, Wisconsin Statutes.

- {B) Use and Investment. No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Bonds canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Bonds may be used to reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the County, be invested by purchasing the Bonds as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or in permitted municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Permitted Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service Fund Account. Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform with the provisions ofthe Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any applicable Treasury Regulations (the "Regulations").
- (C) Remaining Monies. When all of the Bonds have been paid in full and canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the County, unless the County Board of Supervisors directs otherwise.

Section 7. Proceeds of the Bonds; Segregated Bmrowed Money Fund. The proceeds of the Bonds (the "Bond Proceeds") (other than any premium and accrued interest which must be paid at the time of the delivery of the Bonds into the Debt Service Fund Account created above) shall be deposited into a special fund (the "Borrowed Money Fund") separate and distinct from all other funds of the

County and disbursed solely for the purpose or purposes for which borrowed. In no event shall monies in the Borrowed Money Fund be used to fund operating expenses of the general fund of the County or of any special revenue fund of the County that is supported by property taxes. Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be temporarily invested in Permitted Investments. Any monies, including any income from Permitted Investments, remaining in the Borrowed Money Fund after the purpose or purposes for which the Bonds have been issued have been accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are not needed and which obviously thereafter cannot be needed for such purpose(s) shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund Account.

Section 8. No Arbitrage. All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the Regulations and an officer of the County, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds, shall certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Bonds are not "arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations.

Section 9. Compliance with Federal Tax Laws. (a) The County represents and covenants that the projects financed by the Bonds and the ownership, management and use of the projects will not cause the Bonds to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code. The County further covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the Code to the extent necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds including, if applicable, the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code. The County further covenants that it will not take any action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or omission of any action within its control (including, without limitation, making or permitting any use of the proceeds of the Bonds) if taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would cause any of the Bonds to be an arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of the Code or would otherwise cause interest on the Bonds to be included in the gross income of the recipients thereof for federal income tax purposes. The County Clerk or other officer of the County charged with the responsibility of issuing the Bonds shall provide an appropriate certificate of the County certifying that the County can and covenanting that it will comply with the provisions of the Code and Regulations.

(b) The County also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the Bonds provided that in meeting such requirements the County will do so only to the extent consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Bonds and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply.

Section 10. Execution of the Bonds; Closing; Professional Services. The Bonds shall be issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the County by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chairperson and County Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the Purchaser upon payment to the County of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery (the "Closing"). The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Bonds may be imprinted on the Bonds in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the County has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Bonds, at least one of the signatures appearing on each Bond shall be a manual signature. In the event that either of the officers whose signatures appear on the Bonds shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they had remained in office until the Closing. The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Bonds and all such documents, certificates and acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing. The County hereby authorizes the officers and

agents of the County to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and contracts in conjunction with the Bonds, including but not limited to agreements and contracts for legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation services. Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Bonds is hereby ratified and approved in all respects.

<u>Section 11. Payment of the Bonds; Fiscal Agent.</u> The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be paid by the County Clerk or County Treasurer (the "Fiscal Agent").

Section 12. Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Bonds. The County shall cause books for the registration and for the transfer of the Bonds to be kept by the Fiscal Agent. The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Bond shall be made only to the registered owner thereof. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

Any Bond may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Bond at the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing. Upon such transfer, the Chairperson and County Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new Bond or Bonds of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and the Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book. No registration shall be made to bearer. The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Bond surrendered for transfer.

The County shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Chairperson and County Clerk are authorized to execute any new Bond or Bonds necessary to effect any such transfer.

<u>Section 13.</u> Record <u>Date</u>. The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date shall be the record date for the Bonds (the "Record Date"). Payment of interest on the Bonds on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the Ronds as they appear on the registration book of the County at the close of husiness on the Record Date.

<u>Section 14. Utilization of The Deposit Only Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System.</u> In order to make the Bonds eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), the County agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, which the County Clerk or other authorized representative of the County is authorized and directed to execute and deliver to DTC on behalf of the County to the extent an effective Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations is not presently on file in the County Clerk's office.

Section 15. Official Statement. The County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Bonds and deems the Preliminary Official Statement as "final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule"). All actions taken by officers of the County in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda to it or final Official Statement are hereby ratified and approved. In connection with the Closing, the appropriate County official shall certify the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or final Official Statement. The County Clerk shall cause copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or final Official Statement to be distributed to the Purchaser. Section 16. Undertaking to Provide Continuing DisclosuTe. The County hereby covenants and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds, to enter into a written undertaking (the "Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in accordance with the Rule. The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the Bonds or by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and the Purchaser to

enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific performance of the obligations thereunder and any failure by the County to comply with the provisions of the Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Bonds).

To the extent required under the Rule, the Chairperson and County Clerk, or other officer of the County charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds, shall provide a Continuing Disclosure Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and terms of the County's Undertaking.

<u>Section 17. Record Book</u>. The County Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the Bonds in the Record Book.

Section 18. Bond Insurance. If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond insurance with respect to the Bonds, the officers of the County are authorized to take all actions necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance. The Chairperson and County Clerk are authorized to agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and which are acceptable to the Chairperson and County Clerk including provisions regarding restrictions on investment of Bond proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal hond insurance policy, the rights of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Bonds by the bond insurer and notices to be given to the bond insurer. In addition, any reference required by the bond insurer to the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of Bond provided herein.

Section J 9. Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effect i ve Date. All prior resolutions, rules or other actions of the County Board of Supervisors or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict. In the event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof. The foregoing shall take effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. Adopted and recorded May 24,2022.

Human Resources, Finance, and Property Committee

#R-39-22 — Resolution Awarding the Sale of \$19,225,000 General Obligation Health Care Project Building Bonds, Series 2022B

WHEREAS, on June 19,2018, the County Board of Supervisors of Marathon County, Wisconsin (the "County") adopted an initial resolution (the "Initial Resolution"), by a vote of at least three-fourths of the members-elect, authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds or promissory notes in an amount not to exceed \$67,000,000 for the public purpose of financing North Central Health Care ("NCHC") Master Facility Plan projects, including the design and construction of building additions, renovations and landscaping to the NCHC Center and Mount View Care Center campus (the "Project");

WHEREAS, the County has previously issued general obligation bonds or promissory notes in the principal amount of \$44,620,000 for the Project;

WHEREAS, the County Board of Supervisors hereby finds and determines that the Project is within the County's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes;

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2022, the County Board of Supervisors of the County adopted a resolution (the "Set Sale Resolution") providing that additional general obligation bonds authorized by the Initial Resolution in an amount not to exceed \$19,225,000 be issued and sold as a single issue of bonds designated as General Obligation Health Care Project Building Bonds, Series 2022B (the "Bonds") for the purpose of paying costs of the Project;

WHEREAS, the County is authorized by the provisions of Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, to borrow money and issue general obligation bonds for such public purposes;

WHEREAS, none of the proceeds of the Bonds shall be used to fund the operating expenses of the general fund of the County or to fund the operating expenses of any special revenue fund of the County that is supported by the property taxes;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Set Sale Resolution, the County has directed PFM Financial Advisors LLC ("PFM") to take the steps necessary to sell the Bonds to pay the cost of the Project; WHEREAS, PFM, in consultation with the officials of the County, prepared an Official Notice of Sale (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference) setting forth the details of and the bid requirements for the Bonds and indicating that the Bonds would be offered for public sale on May 24, 2022;

WHEREAS, the County Clerk (in consultation with PFM) caused a form of notice of the sale to be published and/or announced and caused the Official Notice of Sale to be distributed to potential bidders offering the Bonds for public sale on May 24, 2022;

WHEREAS, the County has duly received bids for the Bonds as described on the Bid Tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit Band incorporated herein by this reference (the "Bid Tabulation"); and WHEREAS, it has been determined that the bid proposal (the "Proposal") submitted by the financial institution listed first on the Bid Tabulation fully complies with the bid requirements set forth in the Official Notice of Sale and is deemed to be the most advantageous to the County. PFM has recommended that the County accept the Proposal. A copy of said Proposal submitted by such institution (the "Purchaser") is attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of Supervisors of the County that: Section I. Rati£cation of the Official Notice of Sale and Offering Materials. The County Board of Supervisors hereby ratifies and approves the details of the Bonds set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto as and for the details of the Bonds. The Official Notice of Sale and any other offering materials prepared and circulated by PFM are hereby ratified and approved in all respects. All actions taken by officers of the County and PFM in connection with the preparation and distribution of the Official Notice of Sale, and any other offering materials are hereby ratified and approved in all respects.

Section 1A. Award of the Bonds. For the purpose of paying the cost of the Project, there shall be borrowed pursuant to Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, the principal sum of NINETEEN MILLION TWO HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$19,225,000) from the Purchaser in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Proposal. The Proposal of the Purchaser offering to purchase the Bonds for the sum set forth on the Proposal, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, resulting in a true interest cost as set forth on the Proposal, is hereby accepted. The Chairperson and County Clerk or other appropriate officers of the County are authorized and directed to execute an acceptance of the Proposal on behalf of the County. The good faith deposit of the Purchaser shall be applied in accordance with the Official Notice of Sale, and any good faith deposits submitted by unsuccessful bidders shall be promptly returned. The Bonds shall bear interest at the rates set forth on the Proposal.

Section 2. Terms of the Bonds. The Bonds shall be designated "General Obligation Health Care Project Building Bonds, Series 2022B"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of \$19,225,000; shall be dated June 15, 2022; shall be in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and shall bear interest at the rates per annum and mature on February 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as set forth on the Pricing Summary attached hereto as Exhibit D-1 and incorporated herein by this reference. Interest shall be payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year commencing on February 1, 2023.

Interest shall be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The schedule of principal and interest payments due on the Bonds is set forth on the Debt Service Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit D-2 and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Schedule").

<u>Section 3. Redemption Provisions</u>. The Bonds maturing on February 1, 2033 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the County, on February 1,

2032 or on any date thereafter. Said Bonds are redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the County, and within each maturity by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

<u>Section 4. Form of the Bonds</u>. The Bonds shall be issued in registered form and shall be executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as <u>Exhibit E</u> and incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 5. Tax Provisions.

- (A) Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levv. For the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and resources of the County are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of the taxable property of the County a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2022 through
- 2041 for the payments due in the years 2023 through 2042 in the amounts set forth on the Schedule.
- (B) Tax Co<u>llection</u>. So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the Bonds remains unpaid, the County shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for. After the issuance of the Bonds, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the County and collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as other taxes of the County for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried onto the tax roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund Account created below.
- (C) Additional Funds. If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Bonds when due, the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the County then available, which sums shall be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied.

Section 6. Segregated Debt Service Fund Account.

(A) Creation and Deposits. There be and there hereby is established in the treasury of the County, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and distinct from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously issued by the County may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service fund.

Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for General Obligation Health Care Project Building Bonds, Series 2022B" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and such account shall be maintained until the indebtedness evidenced by the Bonds is fully paid or otherwise extinguished. There shall be deposited into the Debt Service Fund Account (i) all accrued interest received by the County at the time of delivery of and payment for the Bonds; (ii) any premium which may be received by the County above the par value of the Bonds and accrued interest thereon; (iii) all money raised by the taxes herein levied and any amounts appropriated for the specific purpose of meeting principal of and interest on the Bonds when due; (iv) such other sums as may be necessary at any time to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds when due; (v) surplus monies in the Borrowed Money Fund as specified below; and (vi) such further deposits as may be required by Section 67.11, Wisconsin Statutes.

- (B) Use and Investment. No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Bonds canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Bonds may be used to reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the County, be invested by purchasing the Bonds as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or in permitted municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Permitted Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service Fund Account. Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any applicable Treasury Regulations (the "Regulations").
- (C) Remaining Monies. When all of the Bonds have been paid in full and canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the County, unless the County Board of Supervisors directs otherwise.

Section 7. Proceeds of the Bonds; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund. The proceeds of the Bonds (the "Bond Proceeds") (other than any premium and accrued interest which must be paid at the time ofthe delivery of the Bonds into the Debt Service Fund Account created above) shall be deposited into a special fund (the "Borrowed Money Fund") separate and distinct from all other funds of the County and disbursed solely for the purpose or purposes for which borrowed. In no event shall monies in the Borrowed Money Fund be used to fund operating expenses of the general fund of the County or of any special revenue fund of the County that is supported by property taxes. Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be temporarily invested in Permitted Investments. Any monies, including any income from Permitted Investments, remaining in the Borrowed Money Fund after the purpose or purposes for which the Bonds have been issued have been accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are not needed and which obviously thereafter cannot be needed for such purpose(s) shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund Account.

Section 8. No Arbitrage. All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the Regulations and an officer of the County, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds, shall certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Bonds are not "arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations.

Section 9. Compliance with Federal Tax Laws. (a) The County represents and covenants that the projects financed by the Bonds and the ownership, management and use of the projects will not cause the Bonds to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code. The County further covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the Code to the extent necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds including, if applicable, the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) ofthe Code. The County further covenants that it will not take any action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or omission of any action within its control (including, without limitation, making or permitting any use ofthe proceeds ofthe Bonds) if taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would cause any of the Bonds to be an arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of the Code or would otherwise cause interest on the Bonds to be included in the gross income of the recipients thereof for federal income tax purposes.

The County Clerk or other officer of the County charged with the responsibility of issuing the Bonds shall provide an appropriate certificate of the County certifying that the County can and covenanting that it will comply with the provisions of the Code and Regulations.

(b) The County also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the Bonds provided that in meeting such requirements the County will do so only to the extent consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Bonds and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply.

Section 10. Execution of the Bonds; Closing; Professional Services. The Bonds shall be issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the County by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chairperson and County Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the Purchaser upon payment to the County of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery (the "Closing"). The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Bonds may be imprinted on the Bonds in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the County has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Bonds, at least one of the signatures appearing on each Bond shall be a manual signature. In the event that either of the officers whose signatures appear on the Bonds shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they had remained in office until the Closing. The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Bonds and all such documents, certificates and acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing. The County hereby authorizes the officers and agents of the County to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and contracts in conjunction with the Bonds, including but not limited to agreements and contracts for legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation services. Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Bonds is hereby ratified and approved in all respects.

<u>Section 11. Payment of the Bonds: Fiscal Agent.</u> The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be paid by the County Clerk or County Treasurer (the "Fiscal Agent").

<u>Section 12. Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Bonds</u>. The County shall cause books for the registration and for the transfer of the Bonds to be kept by the Fiscal Agent. The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Bond shall be made only to the registered owner thereof. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfY and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

Any Bond may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Bond at the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing. Upon such transfer, the Chairperson and County Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new Bond or Bonds of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and the Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book. No registration shall be made to bearer. The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Bond surrendered for transfer.

The County shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Chairperson and County Clerk are authorized to execute any new Bond or Bonds necessary to effect any such transfer.

<u>Section 13. Record Date</u>. The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date shall be the record date for the Bonds (the "Record Date"). Payment of interest on the Bonds on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the Bonds as they appear on the registration book of the County at the close of business on the Record Date.

Section 14. Utilization of The Depository Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System. In order to make the Bonds eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), the County agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, which the County Clerk or other authorized representative of the County is authorized and directed to execute and deliver to DTC on behalf of the County to the extent an effective Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations is not presently on file in the County Clerk's office.

Section 15. Official Statement. The County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Bonds and deems the Preliminary Official Statement as "final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule"). All actions taken by officers of the County in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda to it or final Official Statement are hereby ratified and approved. In connection with the Closing, the appropriate County official shall certifY the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or final Official Statement. The County Clerk shall cause copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or final Official Statement to be distributed to the Purchaser. Section 16. Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure. The County hereby covenants and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds, to enter into a written undertaking (the "Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in accordance with the Rule. The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the Bonds or by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and the Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific performance of the obligations thereunder and any failure by the County to comply with the provisions of the Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Bonds).

To the extent required under the Rule, the Chairperson and County Clerk, or other officer of the County charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds, shall provide a Continuing Disclosure Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and terms of the County's Undertaking.

<u>Sect ion 17. Record Book</u>. The County Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the Bonds in the Record Book.

Section 18. Bond Insurance. Tfthe Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond insurance with respect to the Bonds, the officers of the County are authorized to take all actions necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance. The Chairperson and County Clerk are authorized to agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and which are acceptable to the Chairperson and County Clerk including provisions regarding restrictions on investment of Bond proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond insurance policy, the rights of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Bonds by the bond insurer and notices to be given to the bond insurer. In addition, any reference required by the bond insurer to the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of Bond provided herein.

Section 19. Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date. All prior resolutions, rules or other actions of the County Board of Supervisors or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict. In the event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof. The foregoing shall take effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law.

Adopted and recorded May 24, 2022

Human Resources, Finance, and Property Committee

#R-40-22 – Town of Emmet Request for Financial Aid for Access to Big Eau Pleine Park Road WHEREAS, the Marathon County Board of Supervisors approved Resolution R-46-15 on August 6, 2015; and

WHEREAS, Resolution R-46-15 created a policy and formula for equitable distribution of the funding responsibility for long-term maintenance and improvements of local roadways; and WHEREAS, in Resolution R-46-15, the County committed to sharing in the costs of roadway construction, paving, chip sealing, and crack filling based upon the following formula: (Percent of traffic using the local roadway to enter the main parking area of the park or forest unit) X (.75) X (roadway construction / maintenance cost).

WHEREAS, any requests for reimbursement pursuant to this formula are required to be made by August 1 and approved for the ensuing year's reimbursement; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Emmet has requested reimbursement for improvements and maintenance on Eau Pleine Park Road, the access road to Big Eau Pleine Park, in accordance with R-46-15. The proposed improvements are as follows:

Replacement of 5 Culverts -	\$40,000
Pulverizing of Existing Asphalt -	27,684
Asphaltic Pavement, 3,473 tons -	312,570
Shouldering, 838 tons -	15,000
Total Cost -	\$395,254

WHEREAS, the Town of Emmet is requesting that the culvert work be performed in 2022 so that the roadway can settle out prior to paving occurring in 2023. The Town acknowledges that reimbursement would not occur until 2023 but requests that reimbursement for the culvert work be in early 2023 with remaining reimbursement to be made after paving and shoulder work and final inspection by the County is completed; and

WHEREAS, the Marathon County Infrastructure Committee approved the Town of Emmet's request for financial aid for repairs and maintenance to Eau Pleine Park Road on May 5, 2022, with reimbursement to be made pursuant to the formula outlined in R-46-15.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Marathon does approve reimbursement of proposed improvements to Eau Pleine Park Road, in the Town of Emmet, pursuant to the following formula:

(Percent of traffic using the local roadway to enter the main parking area of the park or forest unit) X(.75) X (roadway construction / maintenance cost).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Marathon County Highway Department is authorized to oversee the repairs and maintenance, including the completion of culvert work in 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that reimbursement to the Town of Emmet is authorized in an amount not to exceed \$296,440.50. This amount shall be transferred to the Highway Department fund for such reimbursements as part of the 2023 budget. Dated the 24th day of May, 2022

Infrastructure Committee

#R-41-22 – Resolution to Vacate Portion of Highway Right-of-Way

WHEREAS, Marathon County maintains a right-of-way for County Highway C within the Town of Bergen; and

WHEREAS, an existing right-of-way for a portion of County Highway C in the Town of Bergen, located within part of the fractional Northwest Quarter of Section 19, Township 26 North, Range 6 East, as recorded with the Marathon County Register of Deeds, is not consistent with the location of County Highway C, in that the right of way exists north of the actual location of the Highway; and

WHEREAS, the existing right-of-way located within part of the fractional Northwest Quarter of Section 19, Township 26 North, Range 6 East, in the Town of Bergen, is 82.5 feet wide and, as it is incorrectly platted and does not run contiguous to the actual roadway, extends onto land that is proposed as a lease site for expanded broadband service within the County; and

WHEREAS, Wisconsin Statute Sections 66.1003 and 236.445 allow a County Board vacate or discontinue a public right-of-way if the public interest requires it. Under Section 66.1005, title to the land previously designated as right-of-way would revert to the owner of the adjoining land; and

WHEREAS, vacating this portion of the unused and incorrectly platted right-of-way would allow the land to be used for a lease site for expanded broadband service within the County. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Marathon hereby vacates the following portion of a right-of-way for County Highway C located within the Town of Bergen, finding that it is in the public interest for this portion of right-of-way to be vacated:

A portion of highway right-of-way located within part of the fractional Northwest Quarter of Section 19, Township 26 North, Range 6 East, in the Town of Bergen, beginning at Engle Lane and extending Southeast as identified in red on the attached Survey Document.

This resolution does not affect the existing public right-of-way for County Road C as it exists South of the incorrectly platted right-of-way referenced.

Respectfully submitted this 24th day of May, 2022

Infrastructure Committee

#O-13-22 - Town of Reid Rezone

WHEREAS, the Marathon County Board of Supervisors has been petitioned to amend the General Code of Ordinances for Marathon County Chapter 17 Zoning Code Gail M. Buchkowski to rezone lands from G-A General Agriculture to R-E Rural Estate described as part of the Northeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of Section 27, Township 27 North, Range 9 East, Town of Reid. The area proposed to be rezoned is described as Lot 1 on the preliminary Certified Survey Map (CSM) submitted with the rezone petition, part of parent parcel PIN# 064.2709.273.0989; Address 172119 Kristof Road, Hatley 54440

WHEREAS, the petition was referred to the Marathon County Environmental Resources Committee (the Committee) for public hearing; and

WHEREAS, the Committee, on due notice, conducted a public hearing thereon, pursuant to Section 59.69, Wisconsin Statutes on May 3, 2022 to consider the petition to amend Chapter 17; and

WHEREAS, the Committee, being duly informed of the facts pertinent to the changes proposed, having reviewed the staff report, and being duly advised of the recommendations of the Town of Reid recommends that as to this Petition, the County Board be GRANTED AS APPLIED FOR. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the County Board of Supervisors of the County of Marathon does ordain as follows: The General Code of Ordinances for Marathon County Chapter 17 Zoning Code (and accompanying Zoning Map) is amended as stated above. Dated this 3rd day of May, 2022

Environmental Resources Committee